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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 1415t Annual General Meeting of the Members of Teesta WValley Tea Co. Lid. will
be held at "Mcl.eod House® at 3, Nelaji Subhas Road, Kolkata: 700 001 on Thursday, the 21st September, 2017
at 11.00 AM. lo transact the following business -

Ordinary Businesss :

1. To consider and adopt the Stalement of Profit & Loss for the year endad 31st March, 2017, the Balance
Sheet as at that date amd the Directors’ Report and Auditors' Repert therean.

2 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mudil Bajoria (holding DIN 00015402) who retires by rotation and hiaing
eligitde offers himzalf for re-appointment.

3. Tao rafify the appoiniment of M/s. G. Basu & Co., Chartered Accountants, Kolkata (Firm Reqgistration Mo.
301174E) as approved by the Members at the 138th Annual General Meeling as Statutory Auditors of the
Company, to hold office until the conclusion of 143rd Annual General Meeting, and that the Board of
Directors be and are hereby authorized to fix their remuneration as recommended by the audit committoe,

4, To appoint Branch Auditors and to fix their remuneration,
SPECIAL BUSIMNESS :

B To consider and, if thought N1, 1o pass with or withou! modification(s) the following Resoclution as an
ORDINARY BRESOLUTION -

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant o the provisions of Seclions 198 and 197 and any other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder (including any slalutory. modification{s) or
re-enaciment thereof for the time being in force), read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, the
approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded lo the re-appointment of Mr. Bharat Bajoria, as the
Managing Director of the Company for a period of five years effective from 15t April, 2017 on the terms and
condiions of re-appoiniment and remuneration as conlained in the Letter of Re-appointment, a copy
whereol initialed by the Chaimman for the purpese of identification is placed before the Mesting.*

B. To consider and if thought fit fo pass, with or without modifications, the fallowing resolution as SPECIAL
RESOLUTION :

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Seclion 186 and all other applicable provisions, it any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meelings of Board and its Powers), Rukes, 2014 as may be amendad, fram
time fo time and Arlicles of Association of the Company, approval of the Shareholders of the Company be
ard is hereby accorded 1o the Board of Directors for :

I giving any koan 1o any person or ather body corporate including renewal of existing loans.

il Quing any quarantee or providing security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or
persons including renewal of existing guarantee Bond and Security and / or

fii. acquiring whether by way of subseription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body
corporate (including loans or guarantee already given or securities already provided or securities
already acquired) upto an amount, the aggregate oulstanding of which should not exceed, at any
given time, Rs. 25.00 Crore (Rupees Twenty Five Crore) which shall be over and above the limils as
specified in section 186(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Registered Cifice By Qrder of the Board
5 & ¥, Metaj Subhas Road, Teesta Valley Tea Co. Lid.
Kolkata : 700 001 Mudit Baporia
Dated, the 1st August, 2017 Diirector
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A Member entitied to attend and vote al the Annual General Meeting may appoint a Proxy to attend and
vote thereat instead of himself. A Proxy need not he a Member of the Company. Proxies, in order to be
effective, musl be received at the Company's Registered Office situated at 5 & 7, Netaji Subhas Road,
Kalkata : 700 001 not less than forty-aight hours bafore the Meating

In lerms of Rule 19 of the Companies (Managemeni and Administration} Aules, 2014, a person canactas a
proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of
the share capital of the Company camying voling rights. A member holding more than len parcent of the
total share capital of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single parson as proxy and such
porson shall not act as a proxy for any other person or sharsholder.

Tr_1r=~ Explnatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the item of
Specal Business is annexed hercta.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 18th,
September, 2017 1o 215t September, 2017 (both days inclusive).

A Member desirous of gelling any information on the accounts or operalions of the Company is requested
to forward his queries to the Company at leas! seven days prior to the Mestfing so thal the required
information can be made available at the Meeting.

Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail
addresses for receving all communication including Annual Reporl, Molices, Circulars, ete. from the

Company electronically.

In case of joint holders, allending the meeting, only such joint holder, who is higher in the order of names,
will be entitled to vote at the meeting.

Instruction on e-voting : In compliance with section 108 ol the Companies Act 2013, Aule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rule 2014 and amended and Clause 358 of he Listing
Agreement, the company has provided a facility to the members to exercise their voles electronically
(remote e-veting) through eleclromic voling service facility arranged by CDSL The facility for voting,
through ballot paper, will alse be made available at the AGM and the members attending the AGM who not
already cast their votes by remote e-voling shall be able to exercise their right at the AGM throwugh badlot
paper. Members who have casl their votes by remote e-vating prior to the AGM may atllend the AGM but
shall not be entitled to cast their voles again.

The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion 1o their shares in the paid up equity share capital of
the company as on the culolf date of 14th September, 2017 i.e. the cut off date, are enfitled to vole on the
Resolutions set forth in this nofice.

The members may cast their votes on electronic voling system from a place other than the venue of the
meeling (remote e-voling). The remote e-voting period will commence at 2.00 a.m. on Monday 18th
September 2017 and will end at 5.00 p.m. on Wednesday 20th September 2017, In addition, the facility for
physical voling shall also be made available at the AGM and the members attending the AGM who have
nol cast their vote by remote e-voling or through Ballot form, shall be eligible to vole at the AGM. The
company has appoinled Mr. Babu Lal Patni (FCS-2304) Practising Company Secretary, to act as the
Scrutinizer, to scrutunise the entire e-voling process in a fair and ransparent manner. The members
desiring to vole through remole e-voting are requested to refer 1o the detailed procedure given azs under ;
1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting websile www. evotingindia.com.
2 Click on the Shareholders,
3 MNow, sedect the "Teesta Valley Tea Co Limiled”, from the drop down menu and click on “SUBMIT®.
4) Mo enter your user [0 -

ay For CDSL — 16 digits beneficiary (0.

by For NSDL — & Character DP 1D tollowed by 8 Digits Clint 1D

¢} Members holding shares in physical Tosm should enter folio number registerad with the company.
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MNext enter the image verification as displayed and click on login.

I you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindiacom and voted on an
earlier voling of any company, than your existing password is to be used. :

If you are first time user follow the steps given below ©

For Members helding shares in Demal form and physical form

Pan

Enter your 10 digits alpha -numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (applicable
for bath demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

—  Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
parlicipant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digit
of the sequence number in the PAN field.

—  Incase the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number
of O's belore the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL
letters. Eq. If your name is Tarun Dulta with the Sequence number 1 then enter
TANODDI00T in the PAN fiald.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank details or Date of Birth {in défmmiyyyy format) as recorded
Bank
delaiks or —  [f both the details are not recordad with the depasitony or company please enler
Date of Birth the member idffollo number in the Dividend Bank Details filed as mentioned in

(D08)

in your demal account or in the company records in order to bogiin.

insiructon3).

ay
&

10}

11)

2]

13}
14}

18)

17)

18)

—l

Aller enfering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT™ tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation' menu wherein
they are required to mandalorily enter their login password in the new password fled. Kindly note that
this password is to be also used by the demal holders for voting for resolutions of any other
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for -voting through CDSL
platform. It is slrongly recommended nol to share your password with any other person and take
ulmost care o keep your password confidential. '

For members holding shares in physical form, the delails can be used only lor e-voling on the
resodutions contained in this nofice,

Click an the EVSN for the relevant {Teesta Valley Tea Company Limited} on which you choose to
vate.

On the voting page, you will see *RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION® and against the same the option
YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissant to the Resolution.

Glick on the *RESOLUTION FILE LINK™ if you wish to view the enlire Besalution details,

Alter selecting the resolution you have decided 1o vole on, clhck on "SUBMIT™. A confirmation bax
will be displayed, If you wish to confiem your vote, click on “OK™ else to changa your vele, click on

"GANCEL" and accordingly modity your vote,
Once your "CONFIRM® your vate on the Resofution, you will not be allowed to modify your vake.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the viafing
e

If a demat account hoider has forgotten the login password the enter the user ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgo! Password and enter the detalls as promoled by the system.

Mote for Mon-Individual Shareholders and Custodians

a) Mon-individual Shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF NRI etc.) and Cuslodian are
required to log on to www.cvolingindia.com and registered themselves as Comorates,

d
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b} A scanned copy of the Regisiration Form bea ring the slamp and sign of the entity should be
emaited fo helpdesk. evating @ cdshindia.com

c) After recewving the login details a Compliance user should be created using the admin login
and password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish
o vote an,

dl The lisl of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk evoting & cdslindia.com
and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote,

) A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Allormey (PO which they have issuad
in the favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the
sorutinizer (o verly the same.

13 In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voling, you may refer the Freguently Asked
Questions (FAQ) and g-vating manal available at www.evotingindia.cem under help section or wrile
an email to helpdesk.evoting @ cdslindia.com.

The notice of annual general maeting will be sent to the members, whosa names appear in the register of
members’depasitonies as at closing hours of business an 18th August, 2017,

The shareholders shall have one vote per cquity share held by them as on the cut-off dale (record date) of
14th Seplember, 2017. The fagility of e-voting would be provided once for every folio/client id, irrespective
o the number of joint holders

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after dispatch of
the Motice of annual General Mecting and halding shares as of the cut-off date, .o, 14th September, 21T,
may obtain the login ID and password by sending a reguest =t helpdesk evoting @ cdslindia.com.. Howaver,
if you are already registered with CDSL for remote e-voling then ¥OU Can use your existing user 1D and
password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your passwaord by wsing "Forgot -
User Details / Password” opbion available on helpdesk.cvoling & cdslindia.com.

A person, whose name 5 recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entified to avail the facility of remnote
e-voling, voting through Ballot Form, as well as voling at the Annual General Meating through polling paper.

Mr. Babu Lal Patni, Practicing Compa ny Sccretary (Membership No, FCS 2304, has boen appointed as the
sScrutinizer o senatinize the remote e-veling process (including the Ballot Form received from the Membears
whao do nol have access to the remote e-voling process) in a fair and ransparent manner.

At the Annual General Meeting, at the end of the discussion of the resolulions on which vating is to be
held, the Chairman shall with the assistance of the Scrutinizer order voling for all those members who are
present but have not cast their vote electromcally using the remote e-voling tacility or Ballot Form,

The Serutimizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting al the Annual General Meeting, first count
thir vetes at the Annual General Meeting, therealler unblock the voles cast through remaote e=vating in the
presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make not later than 28
hours of conclusion of the meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizers Report of the total votes cast in favour of
against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing who shall countersign the same.

The Chairman or a persen authorized by him in writing shall declare the result of voting forthwith.

The resulls dectared along with the Serutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website
wwiw.leestavalley.net and on the website of CDSL helpdesk.evoling @ cdslindia.com immediately after
the: result declared by the Chairman or any other person autharized by the Chairman and the same shall be
communicated to The Caleutta Stock Exchange Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed.

195



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPAMIES ACT, 2013
ITEM MO. 5

The term of re-appointment of Mr. Bharat Bajoria as the Managing Direclor of the Company, subject 1o the
approval of the members al a general meeting for a pericd of Five years with effect from 1st, April, 2017 on the
lollowing principal terms and conditions.

Period 5 Five years with effect from 1st. April, 2017

Remuneration Salary Rs. 70,000 per month with such revision as the Board may approve from time to
time in the salary grade of Rs. 10,000

Perguisites k Gas, electricity, water etc, and telephone al residence will be bome by the Company in
accordance with the Rules of the Company, Gost of personal long distance calls, however,
will be bome by him.

Car > Company car with driver under the Company's Scheme applicable for senior executive staff
of the Company.

Medical : Reimbursement of self and family at actual, including cost of medical insurance.

Club Fees 1 Reimbursement of Club Subscription/Fees as per applicable Rules of the Company.

Others ! I Persanal Accident Insurance and other perquisites, which are applicable to senior executive

staff of the Company, shall also apply 1o him.

Retrial Benefits - Contributions 1o the Provident Fund, Superannuation/Pension Fund andior Annuity Fund in
accordance with the Rules and Regulations governing the said funds. Gratuity will be
payable in accordance with the Aules of the Company and such Gratuily shall not oxceed
hall a month's salary lor each completed year of sendce,

Mirdrmam

Remunerationr In the evenl of loss or inadequacy of profits in any year during the tenure of his office, he
shall be paid remuneration as above as minimum remunaration subject to compliance with
the legal provisions as may be applicable.Mature of Duties:He shall have substantial power
of management subject to the superintendence, control and direction of the Board.

Other Conditions: 1. He shall nol entitfed 1o any sitting fees for atlending meetings of the Board or

Committees therenf,

L Each party has the right of terminating the re-appointment by giving three months'
rlice on either side.

The aforesaid terms and conditions have been set out in the Comparny's letter dated 1st. April, 2017, addressed
o Mr. Bharal Bajoria,

Pursuant to the provisions of Secions 196 and 197 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, the re-appointmen! of Mr. Bharat Bajona as the
managing Lireclor and the terms as 1o remuneration require ihe appraval of the Members in General Meeting. The
above lerms as to remuneration have been approved by the Remuneration Commiltes of the Board at its Meeting
bl on A5t April, 2017 *

None of the Directors and KMP other than S Bharat Bajona and Smi Abha Bajoria are inlerested in the.
HReszolution.

ITEM NO &

Pursuant to Section 186(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and Rule 11 and 13 of the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Fules 2014, the Board of Directors is autharized 1o give loan, guarantee or provide sacurity



in connection with & koan to any person or other body cerporate, or acquire by way of subscription, purchase or
olherwise, the securities including shares, debentures eic, of any other body corporate, up to an amount, the
aggregate of which should not exceed 0% of the pard up capital, free reserves and securities premium account
or 100% of free reserves and securilies premiumn account of the company, whichever is higher. In case the
company exceads the above mentioned limits then, prior approval of shareholder by way of a Special resclution is
required o be obiained, :

However, the Company may be required to provide financial assistance/ support by way of giving of loans f
guarantecs, providing of securities, making of investmen! in securities in order fo expand ils business activities
and also for optimum ulilization of funds. Accordingly, Board of Direclors of the Company may be authorized to
gne loans, guaraniees or provide securities or make investrments as mentioned above, up to an amount, the
aggregale oulstanding of which should not excesd, at any given time, Rs.25.00 Crore (Rupees Twenty Five Crore
orly) which shall be ever and above the said limits as spacified in Secbon 136(2) of the Act.

Mone of the Direclors and Koy Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives Is concerned ar
interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution.

Registered Office By Order of the Board
5 & 7. Netaji Subhas Hoad, Teesta Valley Tea Co. Lid,
Kalkata : 700 001 Mudit Bzjoria
Dated, the 1st August, 2017 Drector

DIN : 00015402



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

TO THE MEMEBERS

Your Direclors have greal pleasure in presenting the 1415 Annual Repord with the Audied Accounts for the year ended

At March, 2017,
FINAMCIAL HIGHLIGHTS & PERFORMANCE

Parliculars

Total Revenue
Tolal Expenses

Prodit before Extra Ordinary lems, Depreciaton & Tax

Depreciation
Frafit Before Extra Chrdinany items amd Tax
Extra Ordinary items
Profit Before Tax
Tax Expenses — Current Tax
Defarred Tax
Profit for the year
Balance browght forwsard from prewious year
Balance available for appropriations
Dividend
Tax on Divicdznd
Transfer o Gemaral Resor
Balance carred forwand

DIVIDEND

D o Lower pealit and for futuee safequerd, your Directors do
March, 2017, The dividend on Redeemabfe Cumuisthe Proforen

commitment of Capital Expendiure.
TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company proposes lo transfer Bs, 5,00,0000 o
and an amount of Rs. 2,48 67,421/- iz proposed to be

OPERATIONS

During the year 4,086,112 kgs of tea was manufactured as  agams
under review, the production of the Company was lower due 1o unta

VEar,
CORPORATE SOCIAL AESPONSIBILITY

The: two Tea Gardens of the Gompany in Carjeeling,
Himalaya, facing Kanchenjungha snow clad peaks. B
E,}E‘-ITEHI'IE.1TFH.'." Campany looks after ds 2000 workers
Hehools, fowr English Medium Mursery Schonols
gardens. The Estates have 32 beds — well buil
patients to be moved to Siligur and Darjecling for =
< cretches where workers” children are kept amd
workers ard staff are well maintained with hygpenic condilso

Provisions of SecBon 135 of the Campanies Act
and compulsory cependiture on Corparate Social A

yEsEr

ard two High Schoals o im

2015-17

Fis.
16,40,44,373
15.45,11,450
45.32.923
63,09, 541
32,.23,382
7,50,236
24,733,146
7,25,000
{6.10,507)
23,538,653
2,31,08,768
2,54 67,421
5,00,000
2,49 67 421

2015-16

Re.
15,66,46.665
14,56 54,302
1,098,592 363
¥2.51,405
37,650,958
12.82,057
24,78,901
750,000
(8,42.347)
25.71,248
2,10,37,520
2,36.08,768
5,00,000
2,31,08,768

not recommend any dividend for the year ended 315t
ce Shares also nol recommend a5 a company having

the General Roserve oul of the ameunt available for appropniation
redaired in the Prafit & Loss Account.

4.51.876 kgs in the previous year. During the year
vourable weather condition as compared to previous

Teesla Valley and Gielle, are situatod in the maost beautiful valley of
asides scientiically maintaining over 35 lakh tea bushes on bath the
s and stall with zeal and humane oullsok, There are: nine Primany
pant proper educaton to the children of the twe
and well maintaned hospital. Two standby Ambulances help sedious
pecialized treatment at Company's expenses. There are well rmamilained
fer and provided with mik and biscuits, The houses of the
15 kept around the labour lines.

. 2013 redation 1o constitution of Corporate Social Rezponsibility Committes
esponzibildy Activities are not applicabde to the Company during e



RECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant 1o Section 134(5) ol the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors confirm Bl -

1. In the preparafion of the Anngal Accounts, the applicatde accounding standards have Boon tollovwed ared there has
been mo material depariune;

2. The Direclors had selecled such accounting poficies and applied them consistently and made judgements and
eshimales that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Comparny at
the end of the financial year and of the profitioss of the Compary for thal pesiod

4. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care lor the mainterance of adequalte accounting recards in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Compary and for preventing and detecting fraud and
albwer imegulanilicos:

4. The Directors kad prepared the Arsual Accounts an a guing concern basis.

9 The Directors had lakd down mlemal financial controls 1o be foflowed by the Company and that such intarmal
financial contrals are adequate and were cperting affoctively.

4. The Directors had devised proper systems fo ensure complianoe with the provizions of ail applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectivaly. ;

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Since the fast Report there has been no change in the Board of Direclors cxcept M. Aloke Kumar Rey, who resigned on
<0th February 2017, In accordance with the provisions of the Arficles o Azzocialion of the Company read with Section
152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Mudit Bajosa will retire by rofation at the fortheoming Annusl General Meoting and
being efigible, ofter herself for re-appointment.

The: three: year term ol appointment of Mr Bharat Basona, as the Managng Director had been expired an 3151 March, 2017
The Board #= mesding held on 15t Apdl 2007 re-appoirded as Managing Director for a fresh term of feo years wilh
effective from 1st Aprl, 2017. Appropriate Resolutions will be placed before the Members at the ensieng Annual Gerseral
Meeting secking their approval 1o the re-appoiniment of the Managing Director and the remunesation payabde to him,

During the year, the company had three Key Manageral Personnel, being Mr Bharat Bajoria, Manageng Dircctor,
Miss Kavila Choudhary, Company Secretary and Mr. B. C. Dalal. CFO.

The Independent Diroctors have submitted thedr dsclosure o the Beard that they meel the critera as stipulatod in Section
149 {6) of the Companies Act, 2013

Fhar Board met eleven times dunmg the vear on 10062016, 08.07.2016, 100082016, 17082018, 11.1 12018, 05122016,
18.01.2017, 03.02.2017, 10.02.2017, 20.022017 and 06.03.2017. The infarval gap bebween any bwa Board mestings was
within the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013. .

The Details of the Board meeting and General meeting are gwen in Annexure -|
BOARD EVALUATION

The Board carried out an annual performance evaluation of ds own perfarmance, the Individual directors as wall a2 the
working of the Committees of the Board. The perdomance evaluntion of the Independent Diredors was carried out by the -
artire Board, The performance cvalsation of the Chairman and the non isdependent directors was camied ol by the
independont direciors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Cemmittoe of the Board as on 3181 March 2047 Consisled of Mr Fadiwny Kani Dixt, as Chairporson and
Mr Mudit Bajoria and Mr Aloke Kumar oy as members. Mrs. Abha Bajoriz added as member of commitice, since
hr. Aloke Kumnar Roy had resigned woe.f. 20th February, 2017.

All the recommendafions made e Audit Commilles wong accepied by the Board.
Ihe: Cornmittee met fowr imes during the yoar on 1.08.2016, 17082016, 11112016 and 10.027047
MOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE-

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board as on 3151 March 207 Consisted of Mr. Mudi! Bajoria, as
Chairpomson and Mr Badhey Kant Dbdt and Mrs Akha Bajore s members,

The: Commitles met once dusing the year on 10.06.2016.



SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS BY REGULATORS

Mo significant and malerial orders have been passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunats impacting the going
woncerm slatus of the Company and its operahonal in the fulure,

DETAILE PERTAINING TQ REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 187(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 READ WITH RULE 5{1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUMERATION OF MANAGERIAL
PERSONMEL) RULES, 2014.

The required details are provided in Annexure I annexed to this Heport.

DISCLOSURE UNDER HULE 5(2) AMD 5(3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

There is no employes drawing remuneration in crxcess of the limits prescribed under Rule 5(2) of The Compsinies
fAppoantment) Rules, 2014,

The required details are provided in Annesure 'II' annexed o this Repart,
PREVENTICON OF INSIDER TRADING :

The: Company has adopled a Code of Gonduct for Prevention ol Insider Trading with a view to reguiate trading in
securities by the Directors and designated smployess of the Company. The Code requires pre-clearance los dezalimg in the
Company's shares and prohibits the perchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors and the desigpruited employeos
while in possession of unpublished price: sensitive infarmation in refaton to the Company and during the period when the
Trading Window is closed,

Al the Board of Direclors andg dasignated employess have confimed compliance wilh the Code.
INTERMAL FINANCRIL CONTROLS -

The Company has following systerms and processes in place S0 as to implement effective and robist intemal finaincial
condrels ;

Paolicies : Key policies are defined. understood and enlorced in the oreganizalion.

Cperating Procedures : Clearly delined, detailed and harmomred procodures have been devised and impenenied
across the onganization

Behaviour : The culiure of compliance with laid down quidelines and procedures is evident through the actions and
betevior of individuals and tearms,

Clearly defined roles and responsibilities : Roles and responsibifities are clearly defined for each and every emplayes of
the coanpany. it hedps the employens in understanding and adhering to e applicabe sysiems and processes,

Further, during the year the company appointed Mis Kshitiz & Compary, Charlered Accountants, Kolkata as an Interrsal
Auditor. The firm is authorized to by the Audit Committes to atcuss the adeguacy and compliance of internal control
process, slaldeny requirements eic. The Audit Commitiee met refularhy to roview repors submited by the Internal Auctor,
The: Audit Committee upon discussion wilh Internal AudHor set up applicable contrel measures for the Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The: Company promates ethical behaviour in all its business atlwilies and has put in place a mechamism for reparting
ibegal or unethical behawviour, The Company has a Vigil mechanism and Whestle blower policy under which the employees
arg free bo repor wialations of Applicable laws and reguilabons and the Gode of Cundduct, The reporable matters may he
disclosed fo the Ethics and Complisnce Task Force which uperates under the supervision of the Audl Committes.
Employees may also report 10 the Chairman of the Audit Cemmittee. During the year under reviens, no empoyes was
denied accass to the Audil Commitios.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

Pursuant to section 134(3) (n} of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of directors of the Company has adopled @ Risk
management Policy of the Company. The L-ompany managaes, monitors and reparts on the principal risks and wncedainties
thal can mmpact ils akbility 1o achieve s alrilegic chjoctives

The Company bas introdeced several improvemenis to Inlegrated Enferprize Fisk Management, Internal Controls
Management and Assurance Frameworks and processes to drive a comman integrated view of sisks, optimal risk mitigation
responses and efficient management of intermal control and assurance activities. This intagration is enabled by afl three
besng fully abgrned across Group wide Bisk Managemant, Intemil Control and Intemal Audit methodalogies and processes,
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IS5UE OF SHARES ;

Durinig the Financisal year erded 315t March, 2017-

i) The Company has not granted any Employees Stock Ophon,

i) The: Company has not issund any Sweal Equity Shares,

i) The Company has nat issued anoy equilty shares with diferential reghts.
i} The Company has not allatted any bonus shares during the year,
CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Company has a Code ol Conduct whach iz applicable to directors amd management parsonned of the Company. The
Company believes in conducting business in accordance with the heghest standards of business ethics and comphyimg
with applicable laws, rdes and reulations,

The Code lays down the standard procedure of business canduct which is expected to be folowed by the directors and
management personnel @ their business desdings andd in parficular o matiors redating ntegrity in the work place, in
business practices and complying with applcabde lyws b,

All the direclors and management porsonned have submitied geciaration confiming comphane: with the code.
DETAILS REGARDHNG SUBSIDIARIES -

The Company not has any Subsidiries Compainy ¢ Associate Comparses /| Joint Veniure during the financial year.
DEPOSITS

The Company has neither accepled nor rencwed any deposits durnmg the vear under roviesy.

GOING COMCERN STATUS

Mo significant and material orders have boen passed by the Regulators or Cours or Tribunats impacting the going
concam status of the Company and ds aperation in the fufune.,

MATERIAL CHANGES AFTER END OF THE FINAMCIAL YEAR

Ma Madorial changes and cormmitments which could affect the inancial posilion of the company Feve cocured between the
end of the last fnancial vear and the date of his Annual Hepart,

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENT

The Particulars of loans, quarantees and mvesiment have been disclosed in the financial statements far the year ended on
3zt Manch, 2017,

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts/amangementsiransscions enlernd by the company dusing the financial vear with related parties were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis. During the year, the company had not entered inte any
conbractsfarrangementsiransachions with rekaod parties which could be consadered malerial in accardance with the policy
of the company on materiality of refated party transachons.

Your dircctors draw attention of the members to Mote  24{5) lo the fimancl statement which sefs ol relased party '
fransactons disclosures.

AUDITORS

Mi=. . Basu & Co. Chartered Accountants, Kolkata (Firm Rageelration Mo, 201 174E) as spproved Ly lhe mombers of th
138th Annual General Mesling os Statutory Auditors of the Company to hald office until the conciusion of 143 Annugl
General Meeting and are eligible for re-appointment as Auditors. The Company has received confirmation from the firm 1o
the effect that their re-appointmerndt if made weuld be within the prescribed Gmil under the Companies Act. 2015 and they
arg nol disgualified for the re-appoiniment.

BRANCH AUDITORS
Mis B.C. Kundhs & Co. Chardered Accountants, refire and are chigibde for re-appointment,
AUDITORS REPORT

The obiervations of the Audilors in thoi Heport are seff-grplanatory and therofore, need no futher cxplarakon, As
regards, procadural lapses are concemed, ofective steps are boing taken to remove those lapses. As regards Grataity the
Company has abways ireated Gratuity in the accoents on cash hasis. Sinee the value of the Graluily as on 3135017, dops
ol Fully retate o the current year, the Management decided not Lo provide the wvalsg of Grauity as on 51,732,204 7.
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT

In terms of the requirement of Section 204 of the Companic  Acl. 2013 the Secretaral Audil of the Company for the Wear
erged o 315t March 2017 was conducied by Babu Ly ni, Compary Secrefary, The Secretarial Auditor's Bepor is
attached to this report as Annexure 1l and forms part of 1. Lirector's Aepart. As regards, procedural lapses are concemed,
ofleclive steps are being taken to rermove those lapses.

ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of Annual Relusn pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached 1o this
Aeport as Annexung MY,

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The required detoils are provided in Annesaere 'TI° annexed to this Report.
COMNSERVATION OF ENEREY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

A stalement giving details of conservation of energy and iechnology absorption in accordance wilth Fule 8 (3) of the
Companies [(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is attached to this reped as Annoxure .

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

Your Company's Shares are tradable compudsanily in edecironic form under ISIN Mo IME F18E01011 and your Company
has established connectivity with Cenlral Depository Senvices (India) Limited (CDSL)L

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND AMALYSIES REPORT
Industrial Structure, Development opportunily and Culflow

We wore able to improve upan Tea quallies by undertaking zound sgrculheral lormaliies mely, The production af Tea
Eglales in Darjecling district a5 a whole was safistactory during the year. Due fo implementation of befter agricuftural
technology your company was able o achieve higher production. The comparry hes both short-term and long-lerm vision
to keop the tea bushes in good heart by uprooting and replanting the old ones. For which price realzation was better than
the previous year.

The factones on hoth the gardens are large, spacious and equipped with the lalest machinerios in each deparimend. in
facl, our bwo factories showld serve as model tea factories in the Dasjeefng District

With cheerful workers and s1afl, with beautiful plantation and with excellent factories on both the gardens, the future of the.
property will continue 1o remain bright and cheerful.

Rizk Cancerns and Threats

Your Company has two Tea Plantation unil i.e. Teesta Vally and Geille for producing guality of Teas in this competitive
markel e Company needs huge capilal fwvestments and alzo for replacement of ds existing fechnology and machines.
Though the Company has the comandable market in the Tea Industry, the Nluctuation in the Capital Marke! and current
recession leads to lowering the buying capacity of customers mary lead to declining in the profits of the Company. Thoudgh
the Company has a wery repulation in the locality and wicinity of the Tea Plantation, a pesrmanent solutions to the disterbance
of the Dareeling and Siliguri  area by the Govemment will definitely works towsards the advantage ol the Company's
performancs and revenue,

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The Company has a large work force employed on foa estates. The wellare and well baing of the workers are monitored
clnsahy

In lerms of requirements of Section 4 ol the Sexsal Harassment of Woman at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Hedressaly Act, 2013 the company has formed Intemal Complaints Committees for its workplaces, During the vear, no
compdaint regarding Zexual harassment was received by the said commitioes.

Your Board of Directors wish 10 place on record its sincere apprecialion for the dedicaled sorvices rendered by the
expcutives, staff and workers al all levels for smooth functioning of 1he fea estates.

Bharat Bajoaa Managing Direcior
5 & 7, Nelaji Subhas Road, Mudit Bajoria Direcior
Hollata - 700 001
Dated : the 151 Agust | 2017
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ANMNEXLIRE- |
PARTICULARS OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR ENDED 35T MARCH, 2017

S.No Date of Meeting Bharat Bajoria, M.D. | Abha Bajoria A K Roy A K Dixit Mudit Bajoria
1 10th June 2016 Fresend Present Progent Progent Fresant
2 D&th Juby 2016 Prasen Presem Fresent Frasent Fresent
3 10th: Awiguest 2016 Prasent Present Presant Presant FPrezent
4 17th August 2016 Prasent Prasent Present Present Prasent
5 11th Movember 2016 Fresend PFreseni FPresent Frazent Frezent
L5 Hth Decembers 2016 Presoni Prasant Fresent Prezent Prezent
¥ 18k January 2017 Present Presant Prasenl Prasam FPresent
i Q3rd Febroeary 2077 Present Progent Provegr Prezent Prasant
o 10th Februasy 217 Prosent Presen Presant Present Prazent
10 20th February 2017 Presend Presenl Resigned Presant Present
11 0Glh March 2017 Preseni Fresent oA Frezent Prezent

PARTICULARS OF GENERAL MEETINGS HELD DURING THE LAST TH REE FINANCIAL YEARS

5.No Financial Year Date Time Venus:
1, 2013-P014 2ath Seplember, 2044 110045 A.Metai Subhas Road,
Kolkata - 1
2 2014-2015 20th Seplember, 2015 11004 M, 3 Metajl Subkss Road,
Kolkata - 1
3. 201 5-2016 240th Seplember, 2016 1100481, d.Melaf Subhas Road,
Kodkata - 1

ANNEXURE “lII”

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 197{12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2012 READ WITH RULE 5{1) OF THE
COMPAMNIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES 2014

(1} Ratio of the rernuneration of each DirectoKMP to the median remuneration of all the employees of the Company
for the hinancial year:

Median remuneration of all the employees of the Gompany

For the financial vear 2016-2M7 Hs. 48 878~
The percentaqe increase m the median remuneralion
of employees in the financial year 2.04%
Tha number of permanent employess on the rolls of company as on 31 March 2T 1474
Marwe of Director Ratio of remuneration % increase in remuneration
to median remuneration in the: financial year
of all employees H16-2017

Executive Directors

Mr Bharat Bajoria. Managing Director 14,801 19.88 %

Independent Directors

Mrs. Abha Bajoria 041 :1 Mo Increzes

Br. Mudil Bajoria haf -1 Mo ncreasa

Mr Aloke Kumar Boy 1 e | Mg Increase

Mr Aadhey Kant Dixit 041:-1 No Increase
Moles;

1] The: ratio of remuneration o median remuneration is based on remuneration paid during the period 1st April 2016
fo st March 2017,
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2]

)

(4}

Average percentile increase alr
in the last financial year and its comparison with
justification thereof and point out if there are an

remuneralion ;

Avarage percontile made in the salares of L=yt [ T T
financial year ie. 2016-17 was 2.04% where as

same lmancial year was 19 884%.

Remuneration is as per the remuneration polic
year ended 315t March 2017 is in lerms of the Be

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 5

vady made in the salaries of employees other

than the managerial personnef
the percentile increase in the managerial remunuration and
¥ exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial

other than the Key Managerizl Personnel in the last
the: increase made in the Key managenal remuneration lor the

¥ of the Company : The remuneration paid during the finsancial
muncration Policy of the Company '

(2) AND (3} OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF

MANAGERIAL PERSOQMMEL) RULES, 2014 -
A List of top 10 Employees :
Mamg of Designalion | Aemuenoradion | Naowe ol Cualfealion Daie ol g Last employmen) | Name of @e
e Hacaived® | Employmeni and cummencemant | {yzars) ernployment Director
Emplorae whelher Exsperinnen ol employmen hald Essficen ol the
canleachsi oining the Company
As o oherwsn Company who iz
rilalve
Bars Maraging 7.23.000 Fenpiboyee B %S¢ 0106 1990 4 M.A, Sl
Bajoiia Direcior
B Dals CFO 340,404 Empinoyra B.Com 1311.1%80 54 H.A. M.A
K Chatureodi Supd 668,725 Employes B.A 01.05.1875 T | M.A. M.A.
Managar
oy Majumdar | Manager f,46,000 Empioyee B.5c 15.06.5002 54 HMP Gonup M.A
- Markating
Abhisheh Dev Btasiager 6,233,450 Employes B 16,02, 2004 45 Jayshraa Tea WA
& Incusimes
Dimazn Azaretang 500220 Empilerpess B Com., 08,01 20 45 MA M.A.
Ghosh Manager Diploma n Tea
Manapemanl
O I Hiorg Assislan 5,012,305 Employer B. Com 15.07 2004 45 H.A. N.A
Marasger -
Dipai Bafes Manager 556,111 B B.Com 091976 il M.A N.A&,
Suresh Paridy Manager 3.20,004 Employag B Com (217, 15 LA N.A M.A
A. D. Romni Marsger E16,a04 Employen B.Sc. 06.10L19H6 56 A, LN

" Hemuneraton includes salary, allowsancs:s,

of Income Tax Act and Rules

There is no employee employed throwsghout the fin

exncess of one crore and fwo lacs rupees per annum,

. There is no emploves empiayed for a part of the financial
excess of eight lacs and fifty thousand rupees per manth.

bonuzs and value of certain perquisites evalualed on the basis

ancial year who was in receipt of remuneration in

vear whoe was inorecoipt of rermuneration in



BABU LAL PATHI 51, NALINI SETT ROAD
COMPANY SECRETARY 5TH FLOOR, ROOM NO 19
KOLKATA = 700 007

TEL NO: 22539-T7T15/6

Email id : patnibl@yahoo.com

ANMNEXURE

FORM No MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2017
[Pursuant to section 204{1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 8 of the Companies {Appaintment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members,

Teesta Valley Tea Co Lid
5 & T Metaji Subhad Road
Kolkata-FO0001

| have conducted the secretanal audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherance o
qood corporate practices by Teesta Valley Tea Co Lid (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasenable basis lor evaluating the comorate conducts/statutony
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon
Bazed on my verificaiion of the Teesta Valley Tea Co Ltd’s baoks, papers, minute books, farms and eturmns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, ils
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretanal audit, | hereby report that in my
opinion, the company has, during the auwdi perod covenng the financial vear ended oo 31st March, 2017
gencrally complied with the stalutory provisions lsted hereunder and also the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanism in place 1o the extent, i the manner and subject to the reporling made
herainaftor:
| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returng filed and olher records maintained by
Teesta Valley Tea Co Lid (“the company™) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017 according to the
provisions of:
i The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder,
i) The Secunlics Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRAY) and the rnides made thercundear:;
Wi} The Depositories Acl, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
iv} Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thersunder o the exlent of
Fareign Direct Investment, Overseas Diree! Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.
v} The following -Regulations and Guidelines prescribed undar the Securilies and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 ['SEBI Act'):
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acguisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regu-
lations, 2011,
b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {(Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Requlations, 2015:
e} The Securities and Exchange Board ol India (Issue of Capilal and Disclosure Hequirements)
Regulations, 2000; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).
d)  The Securilies and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employes Benefils) Regulalions, 2014
{Mot applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).
)  The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt Securilies) Requlations, 2008:
(Mot applicable to the Company during the Awdil Period)
i  The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrar lo an Issue and Share Transfor Agents)
Regquiations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
gl The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Mt
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period),
h}  The Securities armd Fxchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulalions, 1998 (Mol applicable
ta the Company during the Audil Period)



vi}  The other laws that are applicable and complied by the company are
i}  The Tea Act, 1953
iy  Food Salety Standard Act, 2006,
i} Plantafion Labour Agl, 19571
| have also exammed compliance with the applicable clauses of the Fodlewing:
il Secrelarial Standards issuved by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India,
iy The Listing Agreements enlered inlo by the Company with Caloutta Steck Exchange

i} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

During the period under review the Company has generally comgphed with the provisions of the Acl, Aules,
Requlations. Guidelines, Standards, ele. mentionad above subject to the following ebsorvations:

1. In some cases the Company has not complied with the provisions of the Regulations and Guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and the Listing Agreement
entered into by the Company with Calcutla Stock Exchange.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Mon-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors, There was no clange in composition of the Board of Direclors
during he year.

Adeguate nofice 16 given te all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and delaited notes on aganda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obfaining further information and
clartfications on the agenda items before the mesting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision 15 carned through while the dissenting members views, i anmy, are caplured and recorded as
parl of the minutes, .

| further reperl that there are adeguale systems and process in the company cammensurate with the size and
operations of the Company lo monitor and ensure compliance with appHicable laws, rles, regulations and
guidelines,

| further report that during the Audit period there was no specific events / actions having & major bearing on the
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, requlations, guidelines, standards etc.,
referred lo above. MNecessary approval has been received from the Calcutta Stock Exchange for the approval of
Scheme of Amalgamation of The Bormah Jan Tea Company (1936) Limited with the Company w.ef, 01.04.2014.
Necessary approval of National Company Law Tribunal is pending for the same.

Place :Kolkata Name of the Company BABU LAL PATNI
Dated :281h July, 2017 Secretary in practice
FCS Mo @ 2304
C.P.MNo. © 1321

Mote :  This report is to be read with aur letter of even date which iz annexed as Annexure & and forms an
mltegral par of this report,
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BABU LAL PATN 51, NALINI SETT ROAD
COMPANY SECRETARY 5TH FLODA, ROCM NO 19-

T,

KOLKATA — 700 007
TEL MO: 2259-T715/6
Email id : patnibl @ yahoo.com

‘Annexure A'

The Members,
Teesta Valley Tea Co Lid
5 & 7 Netaji Subhas RBoad
Kolkala-700001

My report of even dale is to be read along with this letier.

Mainterance of secretarial record is the responsibilily of the management of the company. My responsibility
i5 1o express an opinion on these secretarial records hased on my audit.

2 I have followed the audil practices and Processes as were appropriate to obtain reasenahle ASSUTERCS
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The venfication was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe thal the processes and practices,
| followed provide a reascnable basis of My Opinecn.

3 | have not veriied the correctness and appropriatensess of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
COMpEAny.

4. Where ever reguired, | have obtained the Management representation about the complance of laws, rules,
and regulations and happenings of events elc.

4. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, requlations, standards 15-
the responsibility of management. My examination was limited 1o the verification of procedures on test
basis,

. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as 1o the future viability of the company nor of the
elficacy or effectiveness with which the managemenl has conducled the affairs of the company.

Sigrature |

Babu Lal Patni

Practising Company Secretary

Date :28th July, 2017 ' FCS Mo- 2304
Place : Kolkata Certificate of Practice Number-1321



Annexure - [V

1.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS :
AN

Reaistration Date
Marne of the Company
Calegory'Sub-Category of the Company
Addrass of the Regstered office

And contact details office

(i)
{if}
fi)
(v}
(v)

fvi}
{vii)

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial vear ended on 31.03.2017

[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company

(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014]

Whether listed company

Mame, Address & conlact Details of
Registrar & Transler Agent, if any

L15491WEB1876PLCONO347

MM 1METE

TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED
Company having Share Capital

5 & 7. Metaji Subhas Road, Kolkata — 700 001
Tel. = 033 22483585, 22480313

email : accounts @ teestavalley. com

Website — www. tesstavalley.net

Yes

Maheshwan Datamatics Byl Limited
23, A. N. Mukherjee Road Kolkata — 700 001

Tel. 033 2243 5029, 2248 2248

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the busingss activities contribuling 10 % or more aof the total tumover of the company shall be stated

Sl Mame and Descrplion of MIC Code of the % to total tumoyver
Mo, main products / services Product’zenice of the company
1 Growing and Manuwlacturing of Tea 01271,10791 100 %

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
All the business activities conlribution 10% or more of the total tumover of the Company shall be stated.

S1 Ma

Mame & Address
of the Company

CIMAGLM

% of Shares Applicable
i Section

MOT APPLICABLE
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IV. Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
il Category-wise Share Holding

Calegory of o of Sares held Al the beginaing of he yoar P ol Shares bkl & the ond of e yeer % dmnge
Shareholinrs Fason DF-ApRka0Tg] [A5 on 31-March-2047] during
e Mohe 1) [5G Mo ) he yuar

Diiiveaad Phyysical Taxtal S Demaz Prggical Tolal %

A.} PROMOTERS
{1} Indian
a)  Inciwidual®UF 19600 1] b rhea 17.53 18600 ik L] b e 1753 i
by Coenlral Got
€] Shabe Govifs)
dl  Dodies Coporates i BG2 g EG264 44.18 o EGZE4 fEe 4418 [}
& Bands/Fl
N oy amer
Sulrtotl (A1) 19500 frr o T
12} Foreign
1 NAls - Indmdual
bl CHher - Indivickaals
2] Bodies Coip
il BanksFl
ey Amy pihes

2|
¥

22553 LT 0

L=10 B B — B R -
L=l = — T f
Sl S =3 o
el e R R R T
Ol oo
Sla oo o =

salviotl [AR2)]

Tolal sharnhoiding of Promaler
A = Al + (AR BT 72063 #2563 61,71 10 1463 HEED CH | ]
.| PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
1. Instilutions
#)  Mulual Funds
B Bon&s'Fl Jam (43 aha3 21 2500 623 4042 2T 0
ci  Cenird Got
dl Slabe Gowifs)
el Ventue Capital Funds
fl  Insurance Companies
ul  Fis
nl Foreign Vel
Capilal Funds
I| Other [spealy) Cherseas
Comaorae: Body
Sub-total B 1] 00 43 43
1 Hen-Inslfdulions
1) Bodien Corporases
i Indan i 10a% 1085 [ I 1025 it 0.72 i}
il Cherseas

b Imfividuals
] lechvidosl sharpholders
halckng 1|I\:l'r.vil1:i chaiis
ragetal upbo As 100 Jas 414 43245 45E50 4044 414 LR S 3Dag 0
i Imdradual shamholgas
holding nomal shaer capial
moweess of Ae il e

ol Qe [Spechh
Hin Aemdent Indisrs a fifies ] 443 ] HHH GiEdf 4.43 o
Dualfied Forsign Imessk
Canindun of Fromy Property
Foreign Matignaks
Clearing Memburs
Trusls
Fomtign Hodess-D R

(k] S{43 200 n]

=
e
2

dulrinial (B (2 < 50623 Snda7 fo e 3814 L] LILHE .29 a

G.| SHARES HELD BY CUSTODIAN
FOR GDRs & ADRs

Grand Todad (A Bel) 2l 125588 T5MHHE 190 H LT 1285 50 100 a




ii] Shareholding of Fromoters

5. | Hameof Shareholding af the Ghargholding al the % changs
N | Shancholdar's b of th posr and of the year i shane
[ M 1) [Sea Mate 2) bk
during
e yaar
o o % of ot %= af sharae fla o %o of talal % of shae
Ehares Ehara Pliedged fhanes Shane Pledgnd!
encumbaned encumbseed
1 | Bhara Bajora 21560 4.3 1 P1560 1437 0 1]
2 | Mohanbasi Ime. Co Pyt Lid 15800 1060 L] 5000 1060 ] 1]
3 | den Indusiesd Services Lid a (U 0 1] 0L ] 0
4 | Tnshul Co Pyt Lid 11223 TG bl 13 48 a L
5 | Oandn Hiinges Lad 10457 BaF i 145 BT - 1] i}
& | Tingamea Tea Seeds Co Lid q575 S.6a 0 B2 Led 1] ]
T | Teesta Valley Exports Lid &0 5.3 ] 2 533 1] a
B | Banarhat Inwesiment Co Py Lid 7414 4 ] T414 4.94 ] a
4% | Abha Bajona &4 X 16 i IR ] 375 0 a
10 | The Bormah Jan Tea Ca [1936) Lid 245 |63 a 2 163 ] a
I | Anaslva Bharlia Benelicisry Trust 200 1.4 ] 2000 1.4 n a
12 | Bindiz Trading Pui. Lid 30 a2 1] 30 021 0 1]
Tatal SE3 i1 | 0 foE3 61.M 0 0
ii Change in Promaters’ Shareholding [please specily, if Brere & no changs)
&, Categary of Shareholders Sharehabdng al the beginning of the year Cumula®e Sharsholding during the yess
Mo
Ma. al %l The lotal Mo, of % of #he lotal
sluries shirgs af the Company shanes shanes of the Comgary
| Bt Bojonsy 2150 14.57 2560 1457
L Abha Baora 4rA A16 47 318
3 Bistya Bharila
Beneficiary Trust I 1.4 20 1.34
4 Birdie Trading P Lid an 0.2t 3 oA
i} Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders {other than Directors, Promaters and holder of GDRs and ADRs)
5. Categony of Sharehaicing al the CumuizSre Sharcholding
Mo, | Sharshoklers beginning of the year duing e year
Mo, of %o al B bokal Mo, of % of the total
shamg ghares of The Company shars shares of the Company
1 Sevelitadl Anopchand Shah BO0D 400 000 400
2 I W Folam Wilsan 4000 287 4000 287
| United Indiz knvsuranee Co Lid 2000 133 i 133
4 Kadpan Beawas 2000 133 2 133
5 Vinay Chandm 1400 043 400 043
] Mahabir Pratad Shah 1000 0a7 o0 0g7
! Rutan Chandra 1000 LGy OO0 0&7
] Tuka Kumar Banenjes 200 0.a0 L Q.50
9 Babsadur Chand Jain a5 nsv =0 sy
0 Pranvin' Ghandrm Marandas B0 .53 o 053
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v Sharehelding of Direclors and KEey Managorial Personned ©
5 Categuny of Shanchakling at (ke Currmibafeos Shargholding
Mo, Sharshoidars beminreng al the pear dhuring the: year
Mo, ol % of the |otal b, o % of the total
shanes shares of the Compary shares shares of the Cempany -
1 Bharat Bagona 21560 1437 H56 14.37
2 At Bajania S 2 $A6 4733 Awig
v, INDEBTNESS
Indetibedness of the Company incleding interest outsfanding but not duee for payment
Secured Loans Unsecired Dozt Todal
cachxling dopoats Luxres Irckeidiiness
Ingieinecness al the beginning
al the financial year
11  Principal amound 4551030 £,05 10,351
& Imerest due bt not paid MIL - - ML
3 Inlerest accrued but not due MIL HiL
Total{ 1+2.= 3 405,101 - —- 48510,
Charge in Indiblediness
durireg b linan yesr
Additon 26,150 — = 725150
Faduxtion AR SR — — 389,564
Mt Charge 5,9, 566 336,566
indetriedness at te end
ol thea financial year
1) Prngipal amount 4 98 ABETT = = 43846277
N Irdengst due bl not paid ML - - MIL
3 Inderast acoroed Dl ool doe ML — — Ml
Total (1 +2+3) 4,98, 46,977 — - 4,98 46,977
VI, REMUNERATION OF NRECTORS ANT KEY WANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A Remunaration to managing Director, Whole-time directors andfor manager
3. Mo, Particulars af Remuneration Tota! Amouns (in Rz
Mr Bharal Bajoria, M.D.
1. Gross Salary
%  Salary as por provisions cankained in
Secton 17 (1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 T 2600
by Valwe of parquisies w's 17(2) Incoma Tax Acl, 1961 Hil
c}  Profits in e of salary wis 1703) ) Income Tax Act, 19461 MIL
F Gk Cpdion ML
a Sweel Equily [
4. Commis=ion - % of e profil ML
= hezrs HIL
Tatal 729,500
Cieling a5 per the Az
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Remumeration o other Direstors

Particutars of Remuneration Mame of Directars Total Amourt
{in As.)
A Hajorsy A K Raoy R K Dxil M Bajois
Indiependant Direclors
Fee lor attending board meesngs = 20,000 20,000 20000 G000
Fee for altending Cormities mestngs - — - - ==
COMMMmisE0n - — - -
Ohiers - o —
Talal {1} T = A1,000 2000 20,000 £0,00K]
Oihar Non-Exearive Direcions
Fee for attending baard meatings 20,000 == - 20,000
Fee lor attending Committes mestings = = &5
Commssin — - - —
Chers — — —_ -
Total (2} 20,000 - = - 20,000
Tatal Managenal Resnuneration {1 + 2) B0.000
Orvarall Celling as per Act

Remuneration to Key managerial Personnel obher than MO Blanager { WTD

5. Na. Particulars al Remunaration

Total Amount (in )

Wr B.C. Deadai, CFD Favila Choudhary .5

1. Grogs Salary .

8 udlary as per provisions conlained in

Seclion 17 1) of the lnoome Tax Act, 1861 340404 Oe,000
B Value of perquesites wis 1782) Income Tax Act. 1961 ML MIL
&) Prafitg in ey of salary ws 1773} } income Tax Act, 1951 HIL ML
2 Slack Option BIL ML
3 Sweaet Equiy ML MIL
4, Commizsion - % af the profl HIL ML
& Chbars MIL NIL
Tedal 340404 56,000




Vil.  PEMALITIES/PUMISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFEMCES

Typa Seclion of the Brigl Dtails of Aulhority Appal made,
Comoanies Acd Descrpdon Penatty [ROVMCLT/COURT] if amy
. Pursshment e dhulads)
Compaunding
feers irpased
Al | Lmpay
analty Mang
Funshmen
Compamiding
B. [inexchans
Penaity Mana
Punussimend
Compounding
C. Cihes Cilficers in Dafault
Panally Mane
Punishiment
Compounding
Place : Kolkala Bharat Bajoria Managing Director

Dated - 151 August, 2017,
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ANNEXURE V
TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

ANNEXURE V TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
() CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Appropriate steps have been taken for conservation, viz-a-viz improved ulilisation of energy by adopting
better techniques and replacing old machinery andfor equipment where NECeEssary.

FORM “A”
1=t March, 3151 March,
217 216
Power and Fuel Consumption
1.  Electricity
(a) Purchased _
Linit 357,11 418,534
Tatal Amount Re. 3229471 RAs. 3403847
Rate Init A=, 9,04 Rs. B3
) Owen Generator
i} Through Diesel Generalor
Lirat V¥ 288 87,707
Uit per Litre of Diesel Qi 5r.as 5463
Cosl Uit R=. 2550 Re. 2445
i) Through Steam Turbine Generator
Units - -
UnitLitre of Fuel OillGas = =
2. Coal (Quanlity) T21.10 MT 4515 MT
Total Cast Rs. 59,581,254 Hs. 68,777,394
Averane Rate Rs. a,205 Hz, 9,217
3. Furnace il
Quantity (K.Lts.) - -
Total Amount Rz, = As. -
Average Hale Rs - Rs. -
4.  Otherinternal Generation -
Cuantity L -
Total Cost = -
Avarage RatedInit - -
5. Consumption per unit of Production
Products - TEA
Production {Kgs.) 408,112 451,876
Electricity 1.06 1.12
Fumace Ol - -
Coal 1.77 165
Others L —-
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

FORM “B”
{4) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R & D)
1. Spedlic areas in which B & D carried out by the Company Mil
2. Benefitsderived asaresult ofthe R& D il
3. Future Ptan of Aclion il
4. Expenditure on R & D
a)  Capital il
b)  Aecuming M
¢} Total il
d)  Total R & D expenditure as a percentage of fotal tumover il

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

1.  Effarts, in brief, made towards technaology absorphion, adaptation Mil
and innowvation.
2. Benefils derived as a resull of the above efforts e.g. product il
improvement, cos! reduction, product development, impoit sub-
afitution.
il

3. Incase of imported technology (imported during the last 5 years
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year), following infor-
mation may be fumished ;-

& Technology impored Ml

bl Year of import il

€] Has technology been fully absorhed ? il

dy I not fully absorbed, area where has nol laken place, The Company subscribes
reasons therelore, and future plans of action. o Tea Research

Aszociation within the
meaning of Section 35(1) of
the Income Tax Act.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

a)  Aclivilies. relating to exporls, iniliative taken to increase
ERpnrs,

b) Development of new export markets for product and
services and export plan

c)  Total loreign exchange used and eamed
Foreign exchange used Fs. NIL
Foreign exchange eamied Az, MIL



G. BASU & co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
TELEGRAMS : "TROBAS" CALCUTTA BASU HOUSE
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FAX - 00-91 -22-2212.7476 KOLKATA - 700 072
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T,

Independent Audilor's Reporl on the Financial Slatements

The Members of Teests Valley Tea Company }_imited

1.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Teesta Valley Tea Company
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as al 31st March, 2017, the statement of
profit and loss, the cach flow statement for the year then ended, and 5 summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information,

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Direclors s responsible for the matters stated in Saction 1345} of the Companies
Act, 2013 {"the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that givie a
true and fair view of the linancial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accapted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with RAule ¥ of the Companios {Accounts) Rules, 2014, Thijs
responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguale accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for saleguarding of the assels of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
i iti ion and application of Appropriate #Ccounting policies: making judgements and estimales
that are reasonable and Prudent: and design, implementation andg maintenance of interna| financial controls,
that werg operating effectively for BNsUnng the accuracy and completensss of the ftcounting records,
redevant 1o the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material migstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility _
Qur responsibility is 1o BXPress an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit,

Wa have taken inte account the Provisions of the Act, the stcounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required 1o be incleded in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
there under, '

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Slandards on Auditing specified under Section 143{10) of
the Acl. Those Standards reguire lhat we comply with ethica) requirements and plan and perform the audit
1o obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the lnancial slatements are free from material misstate- -
e, :

An audit involves PEMOrmIng procedures o obiain audil evidence about e 2Maunts and disclosures in the
financial slatements. The Procedures selecled depend on the ayditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material rmisstatement of the financial stalements, whether due o fraud Or errer. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant o the Company's
preparition of the financial stalements thal give a true and fair view in order fo cosign audil procedures that
Are apprapriate in the circumstances, An audit also includes evalualing the appropriateness. of the accounting
palicies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by Company's Directors, as well
25 evaluating the overall prezentation of the financizl statements,

We belicve that the audit evidence we have oblainod 1% sufficient and approprate to provide g basis for gur
audit epinion on the slandalone financial staternents.

Basic ol Qualified Opinion

Meither any provision has been made against liabilities an account of gratuity nor the same have baen
determined. This is not in continuity with AS-15 {revised). The impacts thereof are net readily acertainahln,

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations qven to us, excepl for
possible effects of the matter spacified in 4 above the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the
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information required by the Act in the manner sa required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the siate of affairs of the Company as at 31st
March, 2017, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

B Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditar's Report) Order, 2015 ("the Order), issued by the Central-
Government of India in terms of sub—section (11} of Section 143 of the Act, we grnie in the Annexure 2
a slalement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. to the extent appicable.

As required by Section 143(3) ol the Act, we report that:

a We have sought and obiained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary lor the purpose of our audit

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books.

. The Balance Sheet, Slatement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement deall wilth by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

o, In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial stalements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
excepl for treatment of gratuity referred to in *4* above

a. On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31st March, 2017
laken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the I:iirecmrs is disqualified as on 3151 March,
2017 from being appointed as a Direclor in terms of Sectigh 164(2) of the Acl

L. Our séparate report on adequacy of intemal financial control system and oparating eflectiveness ol
such controls is enclosed in Annexure - | .

Q- With respect lo the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best our information
and according lo the explanalions given 1o us:;

L The Company has disclosed the impact of pending liligations on its financial position in ils
linancial stalements — Refer Note 24 (B) (9) (a) 1o the financial slatements

([ The Company did net have any long-lerm contract including derivative contract which may
lead to any foreseeable loss.

I, There has been no amount, required ta be transferred. 1o the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

V. The Company has provided requisite disclosure in its financial staterments as 1o holding as
well as dealing in Specilied Bank Noles during the period 8th Movember, 2016 to 20th
December, 2016 and these are in accordance with the books of accounts maintain by the

Company.

For G, BASL & CO.

Chartered Accouritanis

Firm Reg, Mo, 3011746

GALUTAM GUHA

Place : Kolkata p Pariner
Daated - The 1st day of August, 2017 Membership Mo, 054700

Report on the internal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-Section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) Annexure :- 1

We have audiled the intermal financial controls over fmancial reporting of Teesia Valley Tea Company Limited (“the
Company™} as of 31st March, 2017 in conjunction with cur audit of the standalone financial slatermnents of the Company lor
the yvear ended on that date. =

Management's Responsibilily for Internal Financial Contrels

The Company's managemen! i responsdile for establishing and mamntyining indermal fnancial condrols based on the
infermal control over financial reporing criteria established by the Company considesng the essential components of
internal control staled in the Guidsnce Note on Auddit of Intemnal Financial Confrols Over Financial Reporting fssued by the
Institute: of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilties include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate intemnal financial controls that were operating effectfvely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
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business, including adherence o company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets. the Prevenhon and deteclion of frauds
and errors. the accuracy and comploteness of the actounting records, and the timely preparation of refinhle fmancizl
information. as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is o REPFESS an opinion on the Lompany's infernal financial controls over linancial reporEng based on
our aedit. We conducted our adit  accordance with the Guidance Mote on At of Intermnal Fimancial Controls avaer
Financial Reporing (the *Guidance MNote®) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to b prescribed
under Section 143{10) of the Companios Act, 2013, to the extent applicable o an audit of ntemal financial controls, both
applicable fo an audi of mienal Financial Contrals and, Balk issied by the Irestitute of Charterad Accourstants of India,
These Standards and the Guslance MNote reuinge Fhat we womply with ethical requirements ard plan and perdorm the audit
1o obtan reasonable assurance abog whether sdeguate intermal financial controls. over financial reporting was estan-
Ished and maintained and i s, contrals operated effectively in all malerial Fespecs, Our audit invobes perarming
procedures 1o obtam auddt evidonee about the adequacy of the imternal hnancial conlrals system over financizl reporting
and their operating effectivenass. Our At af irdemal finarscizl controls over financial reparting ruluded obdaming an
urderstanding of intermal financial confrols avar [enancial reporting, BEsessing he nsk thal o material weakness il
and teslting ard evalualing the design and operating effectiveness of ntamal conlrol based on the ascessed risk. The
procedures selocted dopend on fhe auchifor's judgement, including the assessmant of the: risks of material misstatemens
of the tinancial statements. whether due o fraud or eror. Wa believe that the audsl sidence we have obtamed is sulfliciont
and appropriate o provide o bazis for ocur zudi apirGn on fhe Company’s intermal financial conirols system over financial
reposting.

Meaning of Inlornal Financial Conlrols Over Financial Reporling

A company's inlernal lirmancial conteal over financial reporting is a process dusigned o provide reazonable assurance
regarding the refiahity of linancia reporting and the preparalion of linancial statements for extemal Purposes in ascor-
dance with Qenerally accopbed accounting principles, 4 company's interrmal fnancial control over finsancial reporiog in-
cludes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 1o the mamnbenance of reconds hat, in reasonabile detail, accuratedy
and fairly re3ect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the: company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that
Iransactions are recorded as necessary o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with Qenerally ac-
cepted accourding principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the “omgany are bemng made only in accordance with
autfarisations of management and direclors of the wompany; and (3} provide reasonahbie ASSUINCE regarding prevention
or limely dotecton of uniuAhotised acqursiion, use, or digposition of the COMPpany's assots that could hawve a material
effect on the finandial slatements.

Inherent Limitations: of intermal Financial Controls Qver Financial Feparting

Because of the inherent limitations of imernal financial confreds over financial repording, mcluding the possihibity of
collusion or improger management override of contrals, material mizsstalements due 10 eror or Frowd may oceur and mot
ba dedocied, Also, projections of any aevaluation of the: intemal financial controls aver finarcial reporting fo fulure peripds
are subject lo the risk thar the internal fimancial contral ever Imancial reporting miy become inadequalo because of
ehanges in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with tha palicies or procedures may detenaoratg,

Opirtion
In our apinion, the Company has, in all malerial respects, an adequate nternal finarndal conlnols system over linancial
reporting and such internal finsneial contrals over Fnancial reporting werg operatng edectively as at 31s1 March, 2096,
based on the infernal confred owver financial reprorting critenn established By the Comparny considenng the essentig)
vompanents of intemal control stated in the Guidancs Mate on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Fieport-
Ing issued by the Institute of Charterad Accountanis ol India. :

For G, BASU & ©O

Chartared Accountants

Firm Reg. No, 301174E

GALITAM GLIHA

Place : Kalkata Farnner
Dated : The 15t day of Auquest, 2017 Membership Mo
ds4702



Annexure to the Auditor's Reporl as per Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 - Annexure 2

A The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of lixed assets,

b. The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals. As
informed, no materal discrepancies batween hook records and the physical inventories have baen
noticed on such venfication.

The inventones have been physically verfied at reasonable intervals during the year by management.

The procedure of physical verification of nventones followed by the management are reasonable and
adequale in relation to the size of the company and the nalure of its business.

c.  Onthe basis of our examination of the records of inventory, we are of the opimon that the company
i mainlaining proper records of inventory, The discrepancies noticed on verificaion between the
physical stocks and book records were not material and have been properly dealt with in bodks of
accounts.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firn"n;. or other pares
covered in the register maintained under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. -

The Company has neither given any loan nor made any investment dunng the year. Howewver, Cormpany has
renewed a guarantee of As. 12 Crores in respect of which in our opinion, provisions of Section 185 of Act
does not sedn to have been infringed.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public within the meaning of Seclion 73 10 76 of the
Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the extent modified.

On the basis of records produced we are ol lhe opinion that prima facie cosl records and accounts
prescribed by the Central Government under sub section (1} of Section 148 of the Companes Act, 2013 in
respact of products of the company covered under the rules under said section have been made and
mainlained. However we are neither required o carry out nor have carried oul any detailed examination of
such accounts and records.

a. According to information and explanations given to us, the company’ is generally regular in depositing
with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Providen! Fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duly. Excise Duty, Value
Added Tax, Cess and other stalulory dues to the exten! apphcable 1o it. According to the infermation
and explanations given to us, the arrears of labour welfare fund dues as at 31st March, 2017 for a
perod of more than six moenths from the day they became payable amounted o RAs.1,50,926/-
{Previous Year Rs. 1,41, 608/-).

b, The dues on account on Sales Tax, Income Tax, Exeise Duty, Provident Fund, Service Tax, Wealth
Tax, Value Added Tax and Cess disputed by the company and not being paid, vis-—a2-vis forums
wiherz such dispules are pending are mentionad babow -

Name of Malure of Period Amount Forum where

the Statute - dues Pending

Income Tax Shor Deposit 1993-1994 1,23.568/(- [neome Tax

Act, 1961 af TDS Offices {TDS)

Incorme Tax Assessment 20132014 35,35,348/- CIT (Appesal)

Act, 1961 Dues

Income Tax Aszessment H4-2015 2 68,050/ CIT (Appeal)

Act, 1961 Dues

Agricutture AGIT 1975-1976 B0, 3340 - Assessing Officer

Income Tax

Provident Fund Damages charges 1996-1997 to 18,29,373/- Calcutta High Court
Lfs 148 2013-2014
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Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we
are of the opinion that 'the company” has not defaulted in repayment of dues 1o any bank or government.
Company has na debenture holder o any financial institution borrowing during the year,

9 Tierm loan has been obtained during the year and proceeds thereor being ulilized for the specified
purpose. No Money was raised by way of puble: offer (including deb! instruments) during the year by the
Company.

10, Mo frand has been noticed or reported on or by the company' during the yiear.

11.  Managenal Remuneration have been paid in due adherence of provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule-V of the Companies Act, 2013,

12 The company is not a Nighi a company accordingly paragraph 3 {xii) of the order is not applicable.

13.  All the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Secticn 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 and the details of related parbes transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Siatements as
required by the applicahle accounling standards

14. The company has not made any preferanhal allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
converlible debentures during the YEar.

15.  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or person connected with
thizrr.

16.  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For G, BASU & G0

Chartered Accountants

Firm Feg. Mo, 301174E

GAUTAM GLIHA

Place - Kolkata Parner
Dated : The 1st day of August, 2017 Membership Mo, 054702



STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS




TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED
5&7, Netaji Subhas Road Kolkata - 700 001
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017

As ar Az al
Mo 31st March, 315t March,
2017 2016
Rs. R=
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Share Holders' Funds
{2} Share Capital 1 1.77,00,000 1,77.00,000
(b} Resenves and Surplus : by 314,67 41 2,91,08,768
2. Share Application money pending allotment — :
3. Mon-current liabilities ’
{a} Long Term Bomowings 3 453,800 —
(b} Met Deferred Tax Liabilities (Depreciation) -
(c) Long Term Provisions 4 — —
4. Current Liabilities
(#) Short Term Bormowmgs 5 4,91 20 R27 4,95,10,301
(b} Trade Pavablas & 1,16, 73,825 71,597,836
() Oiher Cumrent Liabifities il 2,12,08,088 242 60,025
) Shot Tarm Provisions a8 11,116,924 6,27 733
Tiotal 13.27.50.885 12,8404, 753
Il ASSETS
1. MNon-current Assets
(@) Fixed Aszsets a
I Tangible Assais 8323381 73496 513
i) Intangible Assets 273921 368,421
{b) Mon-Current Investments 10 3,500 3,500
e} Long Term Loans and Advances 11 2925 165 46,0G,.597
(d) Crther Mon Current Assets 12 2,38 568 1,73 658
€) Net Deferred Tax Assets (Depreciation) 22 57 408 16,46,901
2. Current Assats
i) Inventones 13 2,95, 76, 067 3.58.27 BR3
(b} Trade Receivahles 14 49,22 071 39,82.534
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 38,31,081 5471170
{d) Short Term Loans and Advances 16 49,55 446 24.27,703
(g} Other Current Assets 17 402526 4,02 061
Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Accounts 24
Total 13,27,50,885 12,84, 04,753
Thes is the Balance Shest referred to in our repod o even date, T

The Notes are an integral part of these Financial Stiemants. 5

—

For and on behall of the Board of Diirectars

Far &, BASU & CQ, BHARAT BAJORIA Managing Directar
Charterad Accountanis RMLUDIT BAJORLA - Dirnetor
Firmr Reg. No. 3011746
CALITAM GUHA B. O DALA] CFD

Farinar
Membership Mo, 054709

RAVITA CHOUDHARY  Covmparmy Secrelany
Daded : The 15§ August, 27T
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

5&7. Metaji Subhas Road Kolkata - 700 001

Profit & Loss Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Mobe 315t March, 31sE March,
2m7 201G
Hs. Rs.

INCOME .
Revenue from Operations 18 16,37 42,978 15,6447 470
Oher Income 149 201,395 1,899,195
Total Revenue 16,4044 373 15,66, 46,665
EXPEMNSES
Change in Inventories of Finished Goods 20 6894325  [1,22.53,600)
Employees Benefits Expenses 2 9.83,11,753  10,37.43,031
Finance Costs o2 52,37,725 5508212
Depreciation & Amorbisalion Expenses 9 63,059,541 T a1 405
Oiher Expensas s 4,40 67 G458 4 85 56 BEE
Total Expenses 16,08,20,991 15,2885, 707
Profit bafore Exceptional & Extra Ordinarny ilems 32,23,382 37.60,958

Excaptional ltems (a0, 236) {12.82.057)

Extra Ordinary ilems - s
Profit before Tax 24.73.146 24,778,501
Tax Expenses |

Incomea Tax 225,000 3,256,000

Agriculiural Income Tax 500,000 4,25 000

Deferred Tax (Depreciation) {6,10,507) (8,42 347)
Profit / (Loss) for the year 23,58,653 25,71,248
Earnireg per Equity share

Belore Exceptional Hems (Basic & dilutad) 21.49 2507

After Exceplicnal Ordinary lems (Basic & diluted) 1572 17.14

Significant Accounting Policies & Moles to Accounts 24

Thiz iz thie Profd & Loes Statemoent relesred o in our roport of ovon data.

The Notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

For and on behall of the Board of Directars

For &G, BASLU & GO EHARAT BAJTRIA Maraging Direcior
Charferad Aceouniands MUHT BAJORIA Direscror
Firn Reng. Mo, 30117T4E
GALTAM GLHA 0. G DALAI CFO
Parinor KAVITA CHOUDHARY  Company Secretary

Dabed : The 15t August, 2017 Membership No, 054702
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

Annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet

1 SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Capital
5.00,000 {P.Y. 5,00,000) Equity Shares of Bs. 10/~ each

1.75,000(P.Y. 1,75,000) 6% Redeemable Cumulative
Preferance Shares of Rs. 100~ each

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up
150,000 (P. Y. 1,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
fudly paid-up

Delails of Equity Shares held by shamzholders holding
more han 5% of the equily shares in the Company

Bharat Bajoria, Managing Directar
Maohanbar Investment Co. Pt Ltd,
Zen Industrial Services Lid.

Trishul Company Pvt. Lid.

Oriando Holdings Lid.

Tingamira Tea Seeds Co, Lid.
Teesta Valley Exports Lid,

162,000 {P.Y. 1,62,000) % RBedeemable Cumulative
Preference Shares of Rs, 100/~ each

(@) 6% Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares are
redeemable any time afler expiry of five years amnd before
cxpiry of twenty years, Respective date of allolment of
Preference Shares numbering 50000, 50000, 25000 and
37000 were 26.03.2002, 12.03.2005, 27.03.2007 and
20032003,

o) Details of Preference Shares held by sharsholders
hodding mare than 5%

Abha Bajonia - Director

Bharat Bajoria - Managmg Director
Agastya Bhartia Beneficiary Trust
5. L. Bajoria & Others HUE

Foot Mota : 1 Right Prefercnoe Repayabilty & restriction i Ay an

d) Shares (Equity & Preference) ane freety transferable provided :

.. Application of transfer is in duly prescribed instrumants didy
stamped, execuled by transferor and transforse and accompanied
by certificale of shares under transfer

. For ransfer apphication made by transterar in respect of partly

paid shares, no objection comes from transleree within two weeks
of his receipts of notice issyued by Company in this regard w's 56 {1}

of Companies Act, 2013,

b} Preference share holders will be enfitfed to preferential treatment in respect
of dividend & proceeds of realisation of assets of the company vis-a-vis

equily shane holders under circumstances of winding up of Company,

Total-

31=1 March, 31st March,
2017 2016
H=. Hs
50, 00, D00 50,000,000
1,75,00,000 1,75,00,000
2.25,00,000 2.25.00,000
15,000,000 15,000,000
Mo, of Shares Mo, of Shares
(%6 of holding) (% of hofding)
21560 (14.37%) 21560 (14.37%)
15500 (1 OLB0s) 15900 {1 B0
14152 {9.43%) 14152 (9.43%)
11223 (748%) 11223 (7.48%)
10457 (6.97%) 10457 (6.97%)
8525 {5.68%) 8525 [5.68%)
BOOD (5.33%) 8000 (5.33%)
1,62.00.000 1,62 00,000
Mo, of Shares Mo, of Shares
(% af holding) {% of holding)
71,000 (43.83%) 71,000 (43.83%:)
47,000 (29.01%) 47,000 (29.01%)
10,000 (6.17%) 10,000 (6.17%)
30,000 (18.52%) 30,000 {18.509%)
1,08 ,00, 000 Ff?.ﬂﬂ.ﬂﬂﬁ




TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

RESERVE & SURPLUS

General Reserve

Az per last Balance Sheet

Add : Transferred from Surplus m Statement of Profit & Loss

Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss -
As per last Balance Sheet
Add - Profit for the year

Less : Transfer to General Resenve

Tokal

LONG TERM BQORROWINGS (Secured)
Term Loan from HDFC Bank Lid.
a4  Nature of Security

Hypothecation of Vehicle Purchased
b. Terms of Repayment

EMI of Rs. 23 850/- from May 2017 to
March 2020 &t 9.25% annualised
effective rate of interast,

Note | There in no defaull in repayment of
principal or interest against the
above lnan

LONG TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Income Tax/Agriculture Income Tax
Tola

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Secured
Cash Credit Limit from IGICI Bank Limited

(2) Nature of Securily

Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on current assets
and moveable fixed assets(excluding Vehicles acquired
under proceeds of Vehicle Loan) and equitable mortgage an

Land and Factory Building on Tea Estales)

Note ! There is no default in repayment of principal or inlerest

against the above loan.

TRADE PAYABLES
Creditors for goods and SOrVICES

J1ist March, sl March,
2017 2016
Fs. B=
50,000,000 55,00,000
5,00, 000 500,000 -
65,000,000 a0, 00,000
231,08 768 210,37 550
23.58,653 25,711,248
254 67 41 256,08 ThHE
5,100,000 5.,00,000
2449 67 421 231,08, 768
314,867 42 291,08 768
4 63 800 —
4,63 800 2
4,91 20,837 4,95,10,391
4,91 20 827 4 45 10391
1,18,73,825 71,97 836
1,16,73.625 71,97 836
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

10

11

12

13

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Component of lerms Ioan repayable within a year -
Advanca from customers

Creditors for Capilal Goods

Statutory Liabilities

Other Payvaldes

Total

SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Income Tax S agncullural Tax
(et of advance tax Bs. 16,58,076/) (Previous vear Bs. 26,72 267/-)

NON-CURRENT - INVESTMENTS (held at cost unless stated otherwise)
Other than trade (fully paid) :

A, Investmenis in Equity instruments (Linguoted)
Assam Bengal Cereals Limited
(oY 2 200 shares, PY @ 200 shares of lace value of Bs. 10 each)
b, Investiments in Debantures (Unguoted)
East India Clinic Lernited
ICY ;&6 Debentures, PY 6 Debentures of face value of Rs. 100 sach)

. Investments in Mutural Fund (Unquoted)
G| Mutual Fund {Foruna-94)
(CY : 100 Units, PY : 100 Units of face value of Rs. 10 each)

Total

LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES (Unsecured & considerad good)
Securty Deposits

Court Deposit
Advance Income Tax (Met of provisions Rs, NIL PLY. 3,00,000/-)

Total

OTHER MON CURRENT ASSETS
Fixerdd Drzpposil hidd as margin against Bank Guarantees
maturing after 12 monihs

Balance in Current account attached by fizcal authonties

INVENTORIES

Stock of Slores
Fmeshed oods (SHock of Tea)
Stock of Food Stuff

Tl

A=t March, 31st March,
2017 2016
H=. =,

282,350
1.62 85470 1,85.35,164
= 73125
1817602 22 BT 562
38,42 666 33,563,770
2,12,08,088 24260025
11,116,924 6,.27,.733
11,156,524 627,733
2000 2,000
&0 B0
1,000 1,000
38600 3,600
4,25 466 4,25 466
25,00,000 25,000,000
— 16,78,531
28,250 456 4G,03,097
115,000 50,000 ~
123,568 1.23,568
2,38,568 1,73.568
60,88 315 54 36 522
234,64, 875 3,03,59,200
23,777 32,161
2,85 76 967 3.58,27 B33
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

14

15

16

17

3=t March, 3zt March,
217 2016
Rs. Rs.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Unsecured and Considered Good)
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months from
the date they are due for payment (due from Tea Board of India) 3697 Tan 26,00 026
Oiher debis 12,24,336 13,82 508
Toodal 49 72 071 39,82 934
CASH & BANK BALANCES
Balances with Banks 1042765 13,44 775
Balance with NABARD (TDAS-2007 Account) 20,38,800 41,48, 700
Cash in Hand 1,88 003 151,263
Tatal 41,69,650 56 44 738
Less - Amount under withdrawal restriclon on account
of allachment of aceount by fiscal authoritics 123553 1,738,568
Less | Fixed Deposit held as margin against Bank Guarantes :
miaturing after 12 months 1.15,000 50,000
Total 30.31,081 471,170
Maote :
i Balance with NABARD is withdrawable under

spacificd scheme within the meaning of Section 33A0

of the Income Tax Act, 1961 29,38,500 41,48 700
SHORT TEEM LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured and considered good)
Advance 1o Employees 1722653 11,33,370
Loan to Body Corporate 4,089 732 408,732
Value Added Tax 31,230 216,643
Advance o Suppliers 1,23,630 1,61,000
Advance income Tax (nel of provisions As. 34,00,000/- 2425 962 1,22.542
Chhers 272,233 2.84.418
Total 48 B5 446 24,27 ,.705
Staff advance includes due from officer of tha Company 744,850 _7.0d 800
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS {Unsecured and considered good)
Interesl acerued on Fixed Deposit 16,250 11,093
Interest accrued on athars 1.50.4539 1,55,151
Interest accrued an loan Lo Body Corporate 235817 2 a5 B17
Todal _'_11.02.5?5 4,02 061
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

18 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
A, Sale of Products

Sale of Tea - Orhodox (Domestic)
B. Other Operaling Revenues
Tea Board Orhodox Subsidy
Tea Doard Replantation Subsidy
Insurance Claim on Tea
Sundry Receipts
Toatal

19 OTHER INCOME
Other inlerest Income {Fixed Deposits)
Other Interest Income (NABARD) (TDS 16,720 P.Y. 17,240/ )
Cither Interest Incame (WESEDC) (TDS2.174/-, P.Y 2, 1800-)
Profit on Sale of Fixed Asseis

Total

20 CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS (TEA)
Opening Stock
Closing Stock
Total

21 EMPLOYEES BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries, Wages & Bonus
Contribution e PF and Other Funds
Gratuity
Staff & Labour Wellare Expernses

Tatal

22 FINANCE COST
Interest Expenses
(@ On Cash Credit Account
{c) On Othar Loans
id) Bank Charges
Todad

A=t March, A=t March,
2017 2016
Fs. FEs.
16,16,35, 894 15,45,97 365
12,24 336 13.65.608
385,745 315,104
1,593,003 78,273
— 1,100
16,37 42978 15,64 47 470
5157 2,000
167179 1,722,339
21,744 21,804
1,07 315 —
3,01,395 1,99,195
303,559,200 181056 600
234,64 875 3,03,59,200
GE,94 305 (1.22,53,600)
T.20.46, 137 T.005.04 317
106,76 570 " 1,16,45.240
41,568,159 58,49 770
1.24,30,785 1.56,43,705
89.83.11,753 10,37 .43.031
51,45 875 52 59,005
53,819 54,386
38,030 1,54 521
2237725 o8 212
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

23 OTHER EXPENSES

Auditors remuneration
Audit Fees

Consumption of Stores and spare parts (100% domesticc)

Power and Fuel

Rent

Repairs o Buildings

Repairs to Machineny

Insurance

Hales & Tax

Cultivation Expenses

Tea Cass & Excise Duty

Sales Expenses (including Broker's Commission
As. 10.38,214/, [Previous year As.11,02,352%]
Carriage of Tea

Hepairs o others

Directors' Foes .

Telephone, Telex & Other Expenses
Miscallaneous Expenses

Talal

23A Details of Miscellaneous Expenses :

Electricity Charges

Legal & Profoessional Charges
Motor Car Expenses

Printing & E‘.:aﬁnnn:!r'gr

R 2 Filing Fees

Subseription

Travedling & Conveyance Expensas
Advearhsarnent

Postage & Couner Charges

Other Expenses

Total

40

31=t March, 15t March,
a7 2016
Hs. Rz.
58,650 58,395
1,31.58.010 1,296,086 050
32 60,988 36,60,958
223137 251311
8,55,841 12,60, 687
5,30,280 387426
387 615 424125
3,04,685 3,24,259
1,68,33,008 2,03,71,500
B2.131 89,731
27,441,730 G283, 700
12.23.391 1367 504
&,78.801 565,781
80,000 80,000
1,565,001 1,62.385
35,63.481 37 66,847
44067648 48656658
215,466 220,485
7.97.850 4,73,981
21,008 40,025
207 668 150,001
3,200 25 450
4,75, 202 7.07 531
5,322,381 5,892,132
3,120 2320
238,108 48,707
11,85 299 15,065,185
36,583,481

37 66,347




TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

24. Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2017.
A. Significant Accounting Policies
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,

The Accounts have boen prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and mandalory Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Charlered
Accountants of India. Accounting policies unless specitically staled to be otherwise, are consistent and are in
consonance with generally accepled accounting principlas.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in contormity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management 1o make estmates and assumplions thal affects the reported amounts af Asmels,
Liabililies, Revenues and Expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial
stalements. Actual resuits may differ fram those cslimates

Fixed Assets : (Tangible)

Fixed Assets are stated at cost which includes froight, dities, insurance, taxes and expenses incidental to
acquisition and installation. All expenditure incurred on extension planting are capitalised. :

Intangible : Inlangible Fixed Assets are stated at acquisilion cost.
Borrowing Cast

Barrowing costs refaling to the acquisifion /constructicn of qualifying assels are capilalised until the fime all
substantial aclivilies necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use are complele. A
qualifying ass! is one that necessarily takes substantial period of lime to get ready for ils intended use. Al
other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

Depreciation :

Deprecialion has been provided on Reducing balance method on tangible lixed assels on the basis of usetul
lives prescribed in Schedule I to the Compames Act, 2013,

Intangible Assets represented by software package is amortized over a period of five vears on straight e
basis.

Investments -

Long term Investmeants are stated at cosl, less provisions if any, for diminution in value of investments ather
than tempaorarny in nafure.

Inventories :

Stock of Tea is valued at estimated realisable value, nel of selling cost stock of stores (including Food Stuffs)
5 valued al cost. Cost for the purpose of valualion of stores is computed on FIFO basis. Cost comprises
inward Ireight, duties, taxes elc. Provision is made for obsolete, slow moving and defeclive stocks where
necessary. Excise duty and Cess on Tea lying at factory al the year end is accounted for on accrual basis,

Recognition of Income and Expenses :

a)  Sales include Excise Duly and Cess, Rebates, discounts, claims and ather non-recoverable are excluded
Ihere from. :

b} Sales is recognized in the Accounts on passing of fitle to the goods. 1.e. defivery as per lerms of sale or
on completion of auction in case of auction sale,

) All other iterns of income & fxpanses arg accounted for on accrual basis unloss specifically stated
otherwmse.

Retirement Benefils
Gratuity if any is being accounted for as and when [raid.
Research and Development Expenzes :

Subscription 1o Tea Research Associztion is charged in the Profit and Loss Account under the Heaad
"Mizcellansous Expenses”

1



. TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

Events Occuring after the Balance sheel date :

Evenls occuring after the date of balance sheel, where material, are considered up o the date of approval of
the accounts by the Board of Directors,

Contingent Liabilities
Dispuled liabilities and claims against the company including claims raised by fiscal authorities (e.g. Sales
Tax, Income Tax, Excise elc.) pending in appeal / Court for which no reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation or which are remotely poised for crystallization are nat provided for in accounts but
disclosed in noles 1o aocounts.

However present obligation as a result of past event with possibility of outflow ol resources, when reliably
eslimable is recognized in accounts.

Foreign Currency Transactions ;

Faoreign currency fransactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the transaction date. Addition
oeletion in liability/asset at the point of settiement of transaction on a subsequent date on aceaunt of change
in rate of overseas cumency vis-a-vis reporting currency is accounted for as exchange gain or loss as the
Case may be.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Revenue grants including subsidy / rebates are credited to Profit and Loss Account under "Other Operaling
Revenue® / and / or deducted from the related expenses.

TAXATION

Provision for Current Tax is estimated on taxable income for the accounting year in accordance with Income
Tax Fules.

Deferred Tax is recognised subject to the consideration of prudence, on time difference being the difference
between laxable incomes and accounting income that originate in one period 2nd capable of reversal in one
or more subsequent periods in due cognizance of AS-22.

IMPAIRMENT OF FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assels are subjected to test of impairment on the basis of Cash Generating Unit {CGU) concept if
indication exits within the meaning of para 6, AS-28. Each garden constilule separate CGLI

Test of impaiment involves ascertainment of recoverable value of the CGU being higher of worth of a CGU
derved under value in use method and net selling price methad. Value in use refers to as on date discounted
value of net cash inflow to be generated by the CGU In its assessed life Sppan.

Assels are held in accounts at lower of their carrying cost and recoverable value.
Motes on Accounls ;

I, Additions to Leasehold Land and Development includes the Cost of New Extension and in accordance
with past practice. Mo depreciation hiys been provided for on Leasehold Land and Devolopments due o
usual practice of the authorities 1o renew the lease period after expiry of same.

2. The Company operates in a single business segment i.e. Tea, no lurther disclosure is reguired 1o be
mace as per AS — 17 on Segment Reparting.

J. In the opinion of the Board of Directors' the Current Assets, Loans and Advances have a value on
realization in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount al which they are stated in the
Balange Sheat,

4. Considering absence of indication ol impairment for either of the two CGU wilhin the meaning of para 6,
AS-28, no exercise of test of impairment has been undertaken for the year.

Related Parly disclosure as identilied by the management in accordance with the Accounting
Stanclard 18.
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

k)
c)

&)

Mot

Related parties in transaction and nature of relationships with therr -

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Bharat Bajoria - Managing Director

Mr. Bishnu Charan Dalai — CFO

Mizs Kavita Choudhary — Company Secretary

Relative of KMP : Mrs. Abha Bajoria {spouse of Mr. Bharat Bajoria — Managing Director)

Directors :

Aloke: Kumar Roy (Fesigned on 20.02.1 7}

Radhey Kant Dixit

Mudit Bajoria

Abha Bajorig

Enterprises over which any person described in {a) above is abie 1n exerase Significant miluehea.
The Tingamira Tea Seed Co. Lirmitad

Teesla Valley Exports Limited

Orlando Heldings Limited

Disclosure of Transactions carried oul with the refaled parties in the ordinary course of the business.

Tranzaction with EMFP Enterprizes whare KMP Relatives Direciprs
Related Partioy has significant influence af KMP
313207 | 3132006 A7 3206 3132017 §31.3.2006 | 31.2.0017 3308
Sale=; SE04H7 | 44482037
EXPENDITURE
Interest paid 0w — - — Sa8d
Aerd Pai - = 26,000 S000
Consumption of Stores - - 615,155 8.2 T3
Ramuneration 1285520 | 1120004 —- -
Miscellaneous Experses — - 1.20,000 1,20 0
Boand Meetng Feas - - — | m0 | Ao oo | sioo
FINANCE & INVESTMENTS
Laans taken (rf) 50000 - - — | 140000 -
Loans relunded back {naty 500,000 — — = | HL,00,000 —
Hank Guaraniees Foneassl —_ — | 130000000 | 12 00000 000
CUTSTANDING
Loers laken = = == =
Interes! Payabla — - = = = —
Sales Advance aken — — | 1528547 | 18535163 - —
Ctheesr Plgpaila - - = = - =
Bank Gusrantes - — [ 120000000 | 1200,00 000

() Enbre Sales and corporate guaraniee related to Teesta Valiey Exports Ltd
(i) Hentand miscellaneous expenses refate o Orlando Holdings Litd. and The Tingamira Tea Seed
Company Ltd. respectively,
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

11

12

Earning per share (before conssderalion of Exceplional items) ©
Met ProfitLoss)as per Probl & Loss Account

Less: Preference dividend on Prel. Shares

Net Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity Sharchalders

Mo. of Equity Shareholdorns

Eaming per share (of Rs. 10v- each) basie & diluled

Raw Matenals Produced & Consumed — Green Leat (in Kgs)
Finished Goods (Cuantidy in Kgs)

Dpening Slock of Tea

Actual Producton of Tea

=ale of Tea

Samples, Garden Use, Shortage cle.

Clasing Stock of Tea

Contingent Liabililics & Commitmeants :

a.  Claim agansi company not acknowledge as debt -
Agricultural Income Tax (197576} under appeal

Income Tax (TOHS) for the Asst Year 1993-94
Incoene Tax for the Asst Year 2013-14

Incare Tax for the Asst. Year 2014-15
(Disallowed by the authorities and challenged by the Company)

Damages charge demand raised by PF Authorities for delayed
payment of PF duees bebween 1996-1997 to 2013-14

{Dispyled by company in Calcutta High Court against which
Hs. 25,00,000¢- has been deposiled o Courd)

b.  Armears of Dividend on Fowed Cumulative Pral. Shares
c. Bank Guarantoe

a. Expenditure in Fnréign.l’_":urrency

b. Earnings in Foreign Cumancy

¢. CIF Value of Import

032007
As.

3223383
8,72,000
22 51,383
1,50,000
15.01
18,22.370

19,165
4,08 112
4,07 664

10,036

Q577

80,339
1,232,568
41,62,620
3,119,530

43,28,373

BE, 04,000
12,05,00,000

1

Ml
il

3.03.2016
A=,

37 50,958
9,72,000
27 58,558
1,250,000
1H.59
19,685,315

13,246
451,876
4,231,753

e 204

19,165

80,339
1,23,568

4329373

58,532,000
12,05,00,000
i

il

Mil

As the Producten of Green Leal (Raw materials) from Company's own Garden involves an integraled
process having various stages such as Mursery, replanting ete. Details regarding the value of consumption

canm be givear,

Paymenls againsl supplies from enterprises registered as small & micro enterprise under MSMED Act,
2006 are mada in accordance with agreed credil lerms within tHe pendew of relevant stalule. There was
no amourt dueloverdus for payment at the end of the year. Neither any payment made to such entrepreneur
dunng the year in contravention of specified credit period. [Y.E. outstanding As. MIL (P.Y outstanding

As. NILJ}
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13. Estimated amount of conlract remaining 1o be executed on Capital Account and net provided for ;

14,

Rs. 30,00,000/- (P. Y. Rs. 20,00,000/-)

Lean to Body Corporate Rs, 4,090,732/ {P.Y. Rs. 4,089,732/ relates to & party againsl whom company
has filed recovery suit. No interest income has been recognised thereon though same has been claimed
under the suit as a major of abundan! precaution in due adherence of AS-9,

15, I:'x-:emicrnz-il ftems appearing in Statement of Profit & Loss represonts payment made lowards Interest on
delayed payment of Provident Fund of earlier vears As, 750 236/ (Provious year Bs. 12,82,0574).

16. Based on bench-mark for identification of rompaenents in terms of specified percentage of written down
value of assets, no component was found separately depreciable in application of foot nate 4" of
Schedule-Il of Companies Act, 2013,

i/, Information pursuant to Section 186(4) of Companies Act, 2013: Guarantee furmished in favour of ICICT
Bank Limited on behalf of Teesta Valley Exports Limited for Bs. 12 Grore renewed towarnds sdid company's
availment of working capital facility from bank.

18, Disclosures relating lo Specified Bank Notes
Details of Specified Bank Notes (5BNs) held and transacted doring the period from 8tk Movember, 2016
1o 30th December, 2016 pursuant to MCA nolilication GSA 308(E) dated March 30th, 2017

EBNs Cther Tital

denarnination in Rs.
notes

Closing Cagh in Hand :
as on 08.11.2016 1.27.500.00 1,38,738.72 266238 72
Add : Permilled receipts : 55,53,923.79 55,53,923.79
Less @ Permilted payments - o5 85 9g) 52 55,85 00082
Less : Amaun deposited in Banks | 1,27,500.00 = 1,27 500,00
Cloging Cash in Hand
3% on 30122016 ‘ - 1,06,671.99 1,06,671,99

13. Figures for the previous year have boen rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary and al figures
have been rounded off to nearest rupce unless slated otherwise,

For G, BASU & CO. HHARAT BAJORIA Managing Direcior
Charfeved Accountanis MUDHT BAJORLA Director
Firm Heg. Mo. 301174E
GAUTAM GLHA B. C. DAL AL (o )
Pasirer EANVTTA CHOUDHARY Company Sacredany
Daled : Tho 1=t Auguest, 2017 Membershsg Mo, 054702



TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.3.2017 (Indirect Method)
Fursuant o clause 32 of the Listing Agreement

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Profil bafore taxation and extraorinany ilems
Admsiments for ;

1. Deprociafion

£ Prold on Sahe ol Assels

3 Inderest (Heceived)

3 mberast [Paid)

Crperaling Prolit before Working Capilal changes
Adjusimeants tor :-

1, Trawds & Cumment Recesvatiies

2. Inventories

3 Trade Pyt

Cash Gaenerated fmm Opesations
Cliract Tenes Pasd

Cash Fkw beforn Extraordinany 5ems
Exception Hams :
EMEE 10 D iins yoars

Ciesh Flow from Oparabng activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

1. Payment aganst acquisiton of Fixed Assels
inchading piyymend aganst capital Eabikty

2. Procesds froen Sale of P Assats

3. Imvestment made ding the year

4. Inlerest Beceved

CASH FLOW FROM FENANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceds Shost Termn Bomowsngs

Fegaymient of Long Tern Bormowings

Inferost Paid

Long Tesm Loan Aeceived

M chamge in Gash and Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Bguivalents (Opaning Balanos)
Cagh & Cigsh Eguivalents (Closing Balance)

dopa pa

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE OF :

Motes ;

Dated : The 15t Augusl, 2017

Balances with Schedule Bank
Current Aocounhs

MABARD {TOAS 2000 Accoyumt
Cash in Hand

&g at &g at
3=t March, 31zt March,
27 2E
A=, Fs. Rs. Hs.
B - 3560058
A3,09,541 T 405
1,07,315) ;
{1,504, 00153 (1,99,195)
51,009,604 11807 840 53,13,301 1.23,45,601
1,84,91,223 1,61,06,559
{11,93,456) 6,400,204
&2.50,915 (140,495,655
148 177 5,54, 554 1,67 18 055 43,02 63k
2E 85 BT 1,04,08,857
{8, 60,608) {15,265, 867}
20125159 1,74 B2 500
750,238 T2z 0
100 74,929 1.62,00,332
{1,60,59,159) (76,55, 768)
1,414,000 ==
[R5 000 i
193615 15789 544) 200 840 (74,45.5258)
{385 564) 314312
{51 56 |;53.1:J.:Ja1_;|
463,800 (61,25 458) — (40,090,079
{ 15,40, 079} A7 55 ARy
5471170 17,15,845
30,391,001 54.71,170
(15, 40,079 7 55,325
804,198 11.71.207
20,583,800 41 48,700
1,88,603 1.5 24

3531,03

541,170

Abcwve statements have Boon prepared in indirect method except in case of inferest, dividend, purchase & sabe of investments
aned ases which have been considered on the bass of ached movement of cash, with corresponding adjustments in assals &

atimes.

Cah and Cash Fquivalents consist of eash in hand and Balanoce with Banks,
Addibeonz 0 Fred Assels are stated inclusive of movements of Capital wark in progress botween bagining and end of B wesr

arnd Iresabisd as part of investing achwilies

For (3, BASU & CO.
Charferad Accoumiants
Firm R, Mo, 301174

GALITAM SUHA

BHARAT BAJORIA

For and on bebalf of the Board of Dirsctoss
Managimgy Dhrecior

MUINT BAJORIA Director
B. . DALAI CRC
KAVITA CHOUDHARY  Company Secreiary

Membership Mo, 054702



